
HAMPDEN TOWN COUNCIL 

HAMPDEN MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

AGENDA 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

MONDAY JULY 6, 2021 6:00 P.M. 
, .••.•.....•.........•.............................................................. 

A. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

B. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

C. CONSENT AGENDA

1. SIGNATURES

2. COUNCIL MINUTES

a. 06/14/21 Council Workshop Meeting
b. 06/21/2021 Council Meeting

3. COMMUNICATIONS

4. COMMITTEE MINUTES

D. PUBLIC COMMENTS

E. POLICY AGENDA

1. NEWS, PRESENTATIONS &AWARDS

2. PUBLIC HEARINGS

a. Proposed Amendments to the Hampden Fees Ordinance, Article 8 Pool.

b. Proposed amendments to the Hampden Fees Ordinance, Article 2.9.1. Sewer.

3. NOMINATIONS -APPOINTMENTS -ELECTIONS

a. Town Council's confirmation of annual appointment of designated Town of
Hampden Officials - pursuant to Title 30-A section 2526(2).

F. COMMITTEE REPORTS

G. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

a. Council Order 2021-02 Prohibiting The Use Of Certain Trailers At The Hampden Transfer
Station.

Note: Council will take a five-minute recess at 8:00 p.m. 



•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

MONDAY JULY 6, 2021 
AGENDA 

6:00 P.M. 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

H. NEW BUSINESS

a. Council Order 2021-03 Permitting Disbursement of Employee Wages and State Fees
-annual policy renewal.

b. Council Order 2021-04 Authorizing The Application Of Property Tax Payments - annual
policy renewal.

c. Council Order 2021-05 Establishing Procedures For The Receipt Of Gifts, Donations and
Funds From Outside Sources - annual policy renewal.

d. Council Order 2021-06 Authorizing The Establishment Of A Tax Club For Tax Year 2022
- requested by Wanda Libbey, Tax Collf3ctor.

e. Council determination of rate of interest to be applied to delinquent tax payments - pursuant
to Title 36 MRSA Section 505.4.

f. Council determination of rate of interest to be applied to be paid on overpaid and
abated taxes - pursuant to Title 36 MRSA Section 506-A

g. Setting of the tax due dates.

h. Council award of the design for the Manning Mill and Sawyer Road bridges, requested by
Victor Smith, Public Works Director.

I. MANAGER'S REPORT

J. COUNCILOR'S COMMENTS

K. EXECUTIVE SESSION - Pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405 (6)(A) - Personnel Matters

L. ADJOURNMENT

Note: Council will take a five-minute recess at 8:00 p.m. 



FOR THOSE THAT WISH TO PARTICIPATE IN THE 

REMOTE HAMPDEN TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 

ON JULY 6, 2021 AT 6:00 PM YOU MAY PHONE 

IN USING THE FQ,LLOWING NUMBER 

(FOLLOWED BY THE PIN #) 

1-352-541-0832 PIN 400 787 752# 

OR-

FROM A LAPTOP OR A DESKTOP, YOU MAY GO 

TO THIS URL: https://meet.google.com/vjx-

jdgp-vnh?hs=122&authuser=0 AND JOIN 

US THAT WAY 

INSTRUCTIONS ARE POSTED WITH THE AGENDA 

AND SEPARATELY ON THE TOWN CALENDAR AT 

WWW.HAMPDEN MAINE.GOV 



Usina Gooal• MMI to Participate fn Hampden Town Councrl Remote MNtina1 

How to join: 
1. Town Council members will receive an emall or a Google Colendar Invite with a llnk to (oln the meeting.

2. People Interested In ioinlng wlll need to go to the link posted on the town events calendar at
www.hampdenmalne.gov.

3. Anyone can also loln for audio-only partlclpatTon by calling the number provided on the town events
calendar and then entering the PIN provided followed by the # symbol.

Protocols for Remole Meetings: 
1. Log In or call In at least 5 minutes before scheduled start of meeting.

2. For the audio portion, use either your phone or your computer microphone, not both.

3. Mute your phone or computer mlc unless speaking. Remember to un-mute If you want to speak. To mute
or unmute In Google Meet, cUck on the little microphone Jeon at the bottom of the screen; note you may
need to move your mouse pointer around the bottom of your screen to get the bottom bar to appear.

4. Speak up If using a computer microphone or If using the speaker function on your telephone.

5. Do not rustle papers In front of your mtc unless It's muted. Please minimize background noise.

6. If you're referring to a document, identify It indudlng page or sheet number.

7. If using the video function, have a light source in front of you If possible. Try to avoid backlighting.

3. H you want to look good, have your camera mounted at eye level or above. Look at yourse1f on screen
to check the lighting, camera position, what's In the background, etc. In Google Meet, you can do this
.. video check" when you open the program before you join the meeting.

9. If you are participating by audio only, Identify yourself when speaking.

1 O. All votes will be by roll call. 

11. After the meeting Is adfoumed, click on the red phone Icon on the bottom bar to leave the meeting, or
(obviously) fust hang up the phone lf that Is how you are participating.

For detailed Instructions on using Google Meet, please refer to their website: 

support.google.com/ a/users/ answer /92 82720ihl=en 

Hampden Maine Town Council meelin9 
For use during fne Covid• r 9 Slate of Emergency in Maine 

April 2020 



HAMPDEN TOWN COUNCIL WORKSHOP 

HAMPDEN MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

MINUTES 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

MONDAY JUNE 14, 2021 6:00 P.M . 
•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

In Attendance: 

Mayor Shelby Wright 
Councilor Eric Jarvi 
Councilor Mark Cormier 
Councilor Ivan McPike 
Councilor Allen Esposito 
Councilor Peter Erickson 
Councilor Christine Cubberley 

A. CALL TO ORDER

Paula Scott, Town Manager 
Amy Ryder, Economic Development Director 
Victor Smith, Public Works Director 
Ryan Carey, Code Enforcement Officer 
Terry McAvoy, Town Resident 

Deputy Mayor Jarvi called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

B. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

C. NEW BUSINESS

a. Discussion on Axiom Broadband, requested by Amy Ryder Economic Development
Director.

Amy Ryder Economic Development Director spoke on Axiom Broadband and other Internet
Service Provider sources that she has reached out to. She would like to move forward with
Axiom with the grant money we've received in the planning phase, it would be a municipally
owned infrastructure and would create revenue for the Town. Council referred to the next
Council Meeting for action to authorize a Municipal Bond proposal for the November Ballot.

b. Discussion on doing a ridership study on BACTS.

After discussion on possible ridership survey on BACTS refen-ed to a Council Meeting
for a formal action.

c. Discussion on peg channel access and use, requested by Terri McAvoy.

Terry McAvoy, Town resident addressed Council on Public, Education and Government
Channel access and use. After discussion consensus of Council is to have Town staff
prepare an RFP on potentially running public access channel 2.

Note: Council will take a five-minute recess at 8:00 p.m. 



, ...•••................••..................................................••••••... 

MONDAY JUNE 14, 2021 
MINUTES 

6:00 P.M. 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

d. Discussion on the Transfer Station.

After discussion on Transfer Station related issues including the use of dump trailers, hours 
of operation and a significant and ongoing public input on the future of the Swap Shop, 
consensus of Council is to is to charge town staff and public works to essentially come up 
with a proposal for consideration by council to include cost in what a reworked Swap Shop 
may look like outside the physical confines of the current transfer station to eliminate any 
safety issues; to put on a Council Agenda an item to essentially amend the Council Rules 
on allowable trailer's at the transfer station; and for a managerial decision as to new 
operation hours brought to Council for endorsement. 

e. Discussion on Policy Direction for the rural zone.

After discussion on policy direction for the town planner in amending the current rural 
zoning ordinance related to open spaces, buffer zones and fire protection it was felt the 
charge moving forward, at least to staff in the Planning Board, with open space and buffer 
requirements is that a developer would have either a buffer space requirement to meet or 
an open space requirement to meet and to explore both options simultaneously and to place 
on a Council Agenda for action an item for a Moratorium Ordinance for Multi-Family 
Dwellings in the Rural District. 

D. ADJOURNMENT

Meeting adjourned at 8:20 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 
Gayle C. Decker, Town Clerk 

Note: Council will take a five-minute recess at 8:00 p.m. 



C-:i-b 
HAMPDEN TOWN COUNCIL 

HAMPDEN MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

MINUTES 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

MONDAY JUNE 21, 2021 6:00 P.M. 
, ...................•....•.......•....................•........................••... 

In Attendance: 

Mayor Shelby Wright 
Councilor Eric Jarvi 
Councilor Mark Cormier 
Councilor Ivan McPike 
Councilor Allen Esposito 
Councilor Peter Erickson 
Councilor Christine Cubberley 

Paula Scott, Town Manager 
Gayle C. Decker, Town Clerk 
Amy Ryder, Economic Development Director 
Victor Smith, Public Works Director 
Christian Bailey, Public Safety Director 
Shelley Abbott, Recreation Director 
Jill McLaughlin, Assistant Recreation Director 
Clifton lier, Town Planner 
David Ryder, Town Resident 
Avery Caldwell, Town Resident 
Mark Ouellette, Axiom 
Other Members of the Public 

Mayor Wright called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

A. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Mayor Wright led the Pledge of Allegiance.

B. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

Motion: Councilor McPike moved to approve the agenda, seconded by Councilor Jarvi
Vote 7-0

Resolution: 2021- 112

C. CONSENT AGENDA

Motion: Councilor Jarvi moved to approve the consent agenda with the elimination of item
3-c-Council Letter to Natural Resources Council of Maine, seconded by Councilor McPike.
Vote 7-0

Resolution: 2021 - 113

1. SIGNATURES

2. COUNCIL MINUTES

a. 6/14/2021 Council Workshop.
b. 6/21/2021 Council Meeting.

Note: Council will take a five-minute recess at 8:00 p.m. 



•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

MONDAY JUNE 21, 2021 6:00 P.M. 
MINUTES 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

3. COMMUNICATIONS

a. Renewal Victualer's License - Mac's Convenience Stores LLC

b. Hampden's Ridership on BACTS

c. Council Letter to Natural Resources Council of Maine

4. COMMITTEE MINUTES

D. PUBLIC COMMENTS

E. POLICY AGENDA

1. NEWS, PRESENTATIONS & AWARDS

a. Recognition of appreciation and award to Journey Church for their support of the Hybrid
Hangout Program, presented by Shelley Abbott, Recreation Director.

Shelley Abbott, Recreation Director recognized Jim Funari, Pastor of Journey Church,
his wife and family and presented appreciation and award for their support of the
Hybrid Hangout Program.

2. PUBLIC HEARINGS

a. Consideration of the FY 2022 Hampden Town Budget including the Sewer Budget and
Capital Program.

Town Manager Scott spoke with an overview of the FY22 Budget.

Motion: Councilor Jarvi moved to open the public hearing, seconded by Councilor
McPike. Vote 7-0

Resolution: 2020 - 114

Town resident David Ryder spoke asking Council to consider an increase of $4000. 00
in the Recreation Department to have aluminon bleachers installed at the VFW Field
for the visiting team and asked Council to look into the dry hydrant situation and see if
we need to put in more money then what we have scheduled.

Councilor Wright proposed adding an additional $20,000.00 to the Marina Budget for
infrastructure development that includes running electricity out to the knoll area and
building a gazebo.

Motion: Councilor Wright made a motion to approve the budget as presented with the
addition of $4000. 00 to the recreation line item and $20,000. 00 to the Marina Fund,
with no second motion fails.

Motion: Councilor McPike moved to come out of public session, seconded by
Councilor Jarvi. Vote 7-0

Resolution: 2020 - 115

Note: Council will take a five-minute recess at 8:00 p.m. 



, ••..••••..••••••••........••••••.......••...•....•.•..•.....•..•...........••

MONDAY JUNE 21, 2021 
MINUTES 

6:00 P.M. 

, ............................................................................ .

Motion: Councilor Wright made a motion to approve the budget as presented with the 
sewer budget and capital program, including an addition of $4000.00 to the recreation 
budget for aluminum bleachers at the VFW field and $20,000.00 for proposed 
infrastructure developments including a gazebo at the Marina, seconded by Councilor 
Cubberley. Councilor Wright amended her motion to approve the budget as presented 
with the sewer budget and capital program and an addition of $4000. 00 to the recreation 
program for aluminum bleachers at the VFW field, seconded by Councilor Cubberley. 
Vote 5-2 

Resolution: 2021 - 116

3. NOMINATIONS-APPOINTMENTS- ELECTIONS

F. COMMITTEE REPORTS

Deputy Mayor Jarvi report.ed on the June 14h Council Workshop.

G. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

H. EXECUTIVE SESSION • pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. section 405(6)(d) to include the Town
Manager and Public Safety Director.

Motion: Councilor Jarvi moved pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. section 405 (6)(d) to go into executive
session to include the Town Manager and Public Safety Director for discussion of labor
contract proposals, seconded by Councilor Cubberley. Vote by roll call 7-0.

Resolution: 2021 - 117

Executive session entered at 6:29 p.m.

Executive session ended at 6:48 p.m. with votes taken under New Business Items a. and b.

t NEW BUSINESS 

a. Council authorization for the Town Manager to sign the contract between Town of
Hampden and the Professional Firefighters of Hampden Local 4903 for the period
beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2024.

Motion: Councilor McPike made a motion to have Council authorize the Town Manager to
enter into the contract between Town of Hampden and the Professional Firefighters
Association, Local 4903 for the period beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2024,
seconded by Councilor Esposito. Vote 7-0

Resolution: 2021 - 118

b. Council authorization for the Town Manager to sign the contract between Town of
Hampden and the Hampden Police Department Maine Association of Police Union for the
period beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2024.

Note: Council will take a five-minute recess at 8:00 p.m. 



•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

MONDAY JUNE 21, 2021 

MINUTES 

6:00 P.M. 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

Motion: Councilor Ja,vi moved Council authorize the Town Manager to sign the contract 
between the Town of Hampden and the Hampden Police Department Maine Association of 
Police Union for the period beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2024, seconded by 
Councilor Cubberley. Vote 7-0 

Resolution: 2021 -119 

c. Council Order 2021-02 Order Regarding Trailers at the Transfer Station, referred from
Council Workshop.

Councilor Ja,vi moved Council adopt Order 2021-02 prohibiting the use of certain trailers at
the Hampden Transfer Station effective June 21, 2021, seconded.

After discussion and public input Councilor Wright called for a vote on the motion on the
floor. Vote 1-6. Motion fails.

Motion: Councilor McPike made a motion to allow trailers to enter the transfer station and
be unloaded by hand, and the number of trailers at one time to be at the discretion of the
Public Works Director, seconded by Councilor Cormier. Vote 7-0

Resolution: 2021- 120

Answering a call for point of information from Councilor JaNi, councilor McPike replied
that the14 foot restriction that we have now still holds and answering a call for point of 
information from Councilor Wright, Councilor McPike replied that his motion includes all 
trailers, including dump trailers and open trailers, must be unloaded by hand.

d. Council action on Broadband Bond Request, requested by Amy Ryder, Economic
Development Director.

Amy Ryder, Economic Development Director gave an oveNiew of her work completed on
achieving equal internet connectivity through all of Hampden and the Broadband Bond
Request.

Motion: Councilor Ja,vi moved Council authorize a public hearing and bond referendum for
the November 2021 ballot in an amount not to exceed $4.5 million dollars to cover the
anticipated costs of broadband expansion in Hampden, seconded by Councilor Cubberley.
Vote: 7-0

Resolution: 2021 - 121

e. Council award of Hydraulic Mulching Head Bid, requested by Victor Smith, Public Works
Director.

Victor Smith, Public Works Director spoke on what a Hydraulic Mulching Head will do.

Motion: Councilor Wright moved Council to award the Hydraulic Mulching Head Bid to
Nortrax in the amount of $21,500.00, seconded by Councilor Cubberley. Vote 6-1

Resolution: 2021 - 122

Note: Council will take a five-minute recess at 8:00 p.m. 



, ............................•..•...•.....•...••..••..••.•••••••.....••••..... 

MONDAY JUNE 21, 2021 
MINUTES 

6:00 P.M. 

, .................................•......•....•...•.......•••..........••..... 

f. Request authorization for the expenditure of $1,238.40 from Environmental Trust Principal
for reimbursement of eligible stormwater expenses for FY21-referral from Environmental
Trust Committee.

Motion: Councilor Jarvi moved Council authorize the expenditure of $1238.40 from the 
Environmental Trust Fund Principal for the reimbursement of FY21 eligible stormwater 
expenses, seconded by Councilor Esposito. Vote 7-0 

Resolution: 2021 - 123

g. Discussion on Brown Tail Moths, requested by Avery Caldwell.

Town Resident Avery Caldwell spoke on his experience with Brown Tail Moths, the 
infestation, the damage and health threat that they bring. He shared information received 
from his resources. Councilor Jarvi felt that it might be useful for the town to track 
infestations in Hampden as part of our website and make the community aware of the 

health ramifications. Referred to the next Council workshop. 

h. Council action on Emergency Moratorium Ordinance for Multi-Family Dwellings in the Rural
District, referred from Council Workshop.

Motion: Councilor Jarvi moved Council authorize an Emergency Moratorium on the 
permitting or approval of all multi-family developments or cluster subdivisions within the 
Rural District, with no second motion fails. 

i. Discussion on draft subdivision amendment, requested by Clifton lier, Town Planner.

Clifton lier, Town Planner addressed Council with an overview of the draft subdivision 
amendment. The language that was drafted is from the last iteration that was voted down, 
two versions of draft amendments to that text, that can go further into workshop. For the 
purpose of guidance the focus is on subdivisions in the rural district because of the threat of 
inadequate fire suppression on health life safety in those areas. The draft text was solely 
provided to remedy this issue. Version A of the draft amendment states that the applicant is 
responsible for the construction of the water supply system and the municipality is 
responsible for its maintenance, so this would apply to dry hydrants and fire ponds 
specifically and with version B the text provided provides a draft amendment where the 
applicant is responsible for the construction of the water supply system and its maintenance, 
unless lots are individually sold to an owner. He is requesting Council guidance on which 
route to proceed in for the purpose of a workshop. Consensus of Council was split. Town 
Planner believes this is indicative of how we move forward, this will just go through its 
general process, through public hearing and with the planning board and then future with the 
town council. 

Councilor Esposito called for a recess. Council took a 5 minute recess at 7:58 p.m. 

J. MANAGER'S REPORT

Note: Council will take a five-minute recess at 8:00 p.m. 



••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••

MONDAY JUNE 21, 2021 
MINUTES 

6:00 P.M. 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

K. COUNCILOR'S COMMENTS

Councilor Cubberley - No comment.
Councilor Erickson - No comment.
Councilor Cormier- No comment. 
Councilor McPike - No comment. 

Councilor Esposito - Congratulations graduates.

Councilor Jarvi - No comment.
Councilor Wright - No comment.

l. ADJOURNMENT

Meeting adjourned at 8:23 p.m.

Respectfully submitted, 
Gayle C. Decker, Town Clerk Isl 

Note: Council will take a five-minute recess at 8:00 p.m. 



TOWN OF HAMPDEN 

The Town of Hampden Hereby Ordains 
Proposed Amendments to the Fees Ordinance- Article 8 Pool Fees 

Deletions are Striketllfaugh Additions Double Underlined 

ARTICLE 8 
POOL 

Amended 11-17-03, 4-4-05, 10-6-08, 9-19-11, 11-27-12, 9-1-14, 4,19-16 

E-;. .. C{_

8.1. Susan G. Abraham Memorial Endowed Scholarship provides the opportunity to learn to swim 
(see 8.9 & 8.10) to those who could not otherwise afford it. The scholarship is based on 
individual assessment of financial need and recipient must be resident of RSU #22 District. 
(Amended 9//9110/J; 9/111014) 

8.2. Annual Resident Membership Fees: (Arnl!nded9/1110UJ:rAmended l/16117)

8.2.1. Family $27e.OO $290.00 
8.2.2. Single Adult $168.00 $176,00 
8.2.3. Youth/feen $130.00 $137,00 
8.2.4. Senior $157.00 $165.00 

8.3. Six Month Resident Membership Fees: (Amended 911/1014; 4119/16) (Amended l //6117)

8.3. t. Family $173.00 $182,00 
8.3.2. Single Adult $106.00 SJ l J,00 
8.3.3. Youth/feen $ 83.0Q S 87.00 
8.3.4. Senior $l0I.OO $106,00 

8.4. Three Month Resident Membership Fees: (Amended 911/1014; 4119116) (Amended I 116117)

8.4.t. Family $106.0Q 
8.4.2. Single Adult $ 67J)O 
8.4.3. Youth/Teen $ 57.00 
8.4.4. Senior $ 62.00 

8.5. Annual Non-Resident Membership Fees: (Amended 9/111014) (Amended 1116117)

Sll 1.00 

'129J!Q 
$60,00 
S 65.DO 

8.5. l. Family $309.QO $325,00 
8.5.2. Single Adult $198.QO $208,00 
8.5.3. Youthffeen $160.00 $168,00 
8.5.4. Senior $188.QO $197,00 

8. 6. Six Month Non-Resident Membership Fees: (Amended 91111014; 4119116) (Amended J J/6117)

8.6. l. Family $193.()0 $203,00 
8.6.2. Single Adult $125.00 $]3].00 
8.6.3. Youthrreen $103.00 $]08,00 
8.6.4. Senior $119.00 $)25,00 

8. 7. Three Month Non- Resident Membership Fees: (Amt!nded 9/111014; 4119116) (Amended J lt6/l7)



8.8. 

8.9. 

8.7.1. Family $119.{)0 SUS.00 
8.7.2. Single Adult $ 80.00 s s�.oo

8.7.3. Youth/Teen $ (;8.00 S 71.00 
8.7.4. Senior $ 74.00 S78,0_g 

Daily Swim Fee for non-members (Amended 9/1911011; 9/111014) (Amended 1116117) 

8.8.1. Single Swim - Resident 
8.8.2. Single Swim - Non-Resident 
8.8.3. Resident 12 Use Punch Card 
8.8.4. Non-Resident 12 Use Punch Card 

Resident Swim Lessons (Amended9l/9/1011; 9/2/20UJ (Amended J 1161

17) 

8.9.1. Members 
8.9.2. Non-Members 

$ 5.00 
$ 6.00 
$ 48.00 
$ 60.00 

$5.00 per oloss $5,25 per class 
$6.50 per oloss $7,00 per class 

8.10. Non-Resident Swim Lessons (Amended 9/1911011; 91111014; U/9ll6J (A-nded 1116117) 

8.10.1. Members $7.00 per oloss $7,50 per class 
8.10.2. Non-Members $9.00 per eloss $9,25 per class 

8.11. Private Swim Lessons (Amended 9/191101 /J (Amended I 116117)

8.11.1 Resident Member (Amended J 1/04120/9)

8.11.2. Resident Non-member (Amended 1110412019}

8.11.3 Non-resident Member (Amended I /104/2019)

8.11.4 Non-resident Non-member (Amended 11104/2019)

8.12. Deleted November 27, 2012 
8.13. Deleted November 27, 2012 

8.14. Adult Aqua Fitness: (Amended 4/19/16) (Amended JJ/6117) 
8.14.1. Residents 
8.14.2. Non-Residents 

8.15. Gentle Aerobics (deleted 9119/2011) 

$1 (;.00 per persoR, per oloss 
$17.00 J>!:r person. per class 

$21.00 per person, per eloss 
$22,0Q per person, per class 

$2 I .00 per person, per eloss 
$23.U0 per person. ner dw

$26.00 per persoR, per oless 
$28.Q0 per person, per class 

$5.00/class 
$6.00/class 

8.16. Pool Party Package (Limited Availability): (Amended 9/19/2011; 9/2/2014; 4/19/16) 
(Amended 11/6/17) 
8.16.1. Resident Pool/Lounge Rental (up to 50 total guests) $1 OO.OO/ho1:1r $125,00/hour 
8.16.2. (DELETED 1116117) 
8.16.3. Non-Resident Pool/Lounge Rental (up to 50 total guests)$125.00/hotJr $160,00/hour 
8.16.4. (D-El,ETED U/.6117) Hampden weekly business rental $60,00/per session 
8.16.5. (DELETED U/-',IJ 7) Non Hampden weekly business rental $65.00/per session 

Note: Pool Party Package payments due infill/ at time of rental. Payments may be made online 
or in person, and may be paid by cash. check or credit card. 

8.17. Swim Diaper $1.00 



2.6. 

2.7. 

2.8. 

Harbor Ordinance 

2.6.1. Private mooring 
2.6.2. Unattended tie-ups (Added J0/1511018) 

2.6.3. Moorings violation (Added /011512018) 

2.6.4. Willful destruction of channel marker/buoy (Added J0/15118) 

Historic Preservation Ordinance 

2.7.1. Certificate of Appropriateness Application Fee 
2.7.2. Historic Site or Landmark Designation Application Fee 
2. 7 .3. Cost of public notices and mailings

Mobile Home Park Ordinance 

2.8.1. Annual Mobile Home Park License 
(This includes application review, initial 
inspection of premises and a follow-up 
inspection). 

2.8.2. Additional Inspection Fee 
(If the town needs to perform additional inspections 
as a result of applicant deficiencies, each inspection 
will be charged prior to the inspection). 

Town of Hanplen, Maine 
Fees Ordinance 
Ja11oory 6, 2021 

$100.00 annual fee. 
$25.00 - $100.00/day 
$25.00 - $100.00/violation 
$100.00 - $200.00/violation 

$75.00 
$150.00 
At cost 

$200.00 

$200.00 

2.9. Sewer Ordinance (Ame11ded8/3/09, 2116/16) 

2.9. l. Sewer Service Charge Rate (Amended8.13109) (Amended 5115117} � $16.00 
{Amended05/20!10/9) per 100 cubic feet of water 

(c.f.w.) consumed as indicated 
by consumer's water meter. 

2.9.3. 

2.9.4. 

2.9.5. 

2.9.6. 

2. 9. I . 1. Sewer Charge Flat Rate Town Water No Meter
(Amended 5//5117) (Deleted /0//512018)
2.9.1.2. Sewer Charge Flat Rate Well Water No Meter 
(Amended 5115117) 

2.9.2. Sewer Service Capital Charge (fNleted 10115/1018) 

2.9.2.1. (Deleted 10/15/2018) 

2.9.2.2. (Deleted 10//512018) 

2.9.2.3 (Deleted 10115/20/8) 

2.9.2.4. (Deleted /0/15/2018) 

Sewer Service Minimum Charge Rate 
(Amended 5115/17) (Amended05120120l9} 

Sewer Service "Ready to Serve" Charge 
(Amended 5115

1

17) (Amended 05/20/2019) 
Special Sewer Service Charge (Sewer Ord. Sec. 10.4) 
(Amended 5/15117) 

Sewer Service Charge Rate Outside Town Limits 

2.10. Solid Waste Flow Control Ordinance 

2.10.1. License Application Fee (initial one-time fee, Per 
Company, up to 4 Vehicles) (Amended 5.

115117)  
(Amended I 116117) 

2.10.2 License Application Fee (initial one-time fee, Per 
Company, more than 4 Vehicles) (Amended 1116//7) 

2.10.3� Annual License Fee Per Vehicle 

7 

$0.00 

$182.66 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$36.00 

$36.00 

As determined by 
Town Council. 
As determined by 
Town Council. 

$200.00 

$250.00 

$ 50.00 



TO: 
FROM: 
DATE: 
RE: 

Memorandum 

Town Council 
Paula Scott, Town Clerk 
June 30, 2021 
Designation and Appointment of 
Officials 

As prescribed by statute, all appointments for officials who are not elected must 
be in writing and the appointment paper must be signed by the appointing party. 
(30-A MRSA § 2526(2). In most cases, the term of all municipal officials is one 
year requiring an annual appointment (30-A MRSA § 2601.2). The Council's 
confirmation of the Manager's appointment of officials should therefore be 
provided annually. If one person holds multiple offices, each appointment is 
separate. Under the Town Manager plan of government, most appointments are 
prescribed by the Manager. For reference, Hampden's Town Charter is 
excerpted in relevant part below: 

ARTICLE III 
ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICIALS AND EMPLOYEES 

Sec. 301 TiJ/es and Appointment- The following officials and boards shall be appointed by a majority vote 
of the members of the town council: Town Manager, board of assessment review, planning board, board of 
appeals and other boards or officials when such appointment is required by state statute or municipal 
ordinance. The council may, where appropriate, and where not prohibited by law, vest in the town manager 
all or part of the duties of any office. (Amended: November 6, 2007) 

The town manager shall appoint the town clerk, treasurer, tax collector, town assessor and department 
heads subject to the confinnation of the town council, and shall have the power to remove such appointees 
when necessary. The town manager shall appoint and remove when necessary all other administrative 
officials and town employees, except as the manager may authorize the head of a department or office and 
except as otheIWise provided in this charter. (Amended: November 6, 1990) 

The Town Clerk has reviewed all the appointments and Oaths of Office for all 
Officials within the Town of Hampden and has prepared the appointment papers 
for each appropriate office from each appointing official. This agenda item is to 
request confirmation of only those town manager appointments delineated in the 
charter as requiring Council confirmation. Historically, the Town Council has 
requested information on all appointments in an effort to better understand the 
positions and which staff members are the appointed officials for mandated 
positions, which information is included in this packet. 



Appointment Roster as of 07/01/2021

Office Official Appointing   Authority        Term Status
Town Manager Paula Scott Town Council Indefinite or by Contract Appointed 01/22/2020
Health Officer Jason Lundstrom Town Council Three year appointment Appointed, sworn in 6/27/2019
Registrar of Voters Gayle Decker Town Council Two year appointment Appointed 05/04/2020
Town Clerk Gayle Decker Town Manager Annual appointment Appointed 07/01/2021 Subject to Council conf.

Tax Assessor Nichole Stenberg Town Manager
Annual appointment,  but may be up to 5 
years Appointed 07/01/2021 Subject to Council conf.

Treasurer Paula Scott Town Manager Annual appointment Appointed 01/22/2021 Subject to Council conf.
Tax Collector Wanda Libbey Town Manager Annual appointment Appointed 07/01/2021 Subject to Council conf.
Excise Tax Collector Wanda Libbey Town Manager Annual appointment Appointed 07/01/2021
Fire Chief Chris Bailey Town Council Indefinite Appointed , indefinite Subject to Council conf.

Police Chief Chris Bailey Town Manager
Annual appointment, but may be longer as 
a fixed term Appointed 05/02/2019, 5 year Subject to Council conf.

Road Commissioner Victor Smith Town Manager Annual appointment Appointed 07/01/2021 Subject to Council conf.
Cemetery Sexton Charlie Nash Town Manager Annual appointment Appointed 07/01/2021
Harbor Master Peter Neal Town Manager Annual appointment Appointed 07/01/2021

Code Enforcement Officer Ryan Carey Town Manager
Annual appointment, but may be longer as 
a fixed term Appointed 07/01/2021

Alternate Code Enforcement Officer Jason Lundstrom Annual appointment Appointed 07/01/2021
Building Official Jared LeBarnes Town Manager Annual appointment Appointed 07/01/2021
Alternate Building Official Jason Lundstrom Annual appointment Appointed 07/01/2021
Builder Inspector Ryan Carey Town Manager Appointed 07/01/2021
Builder Inspector Dan Pugsley Town Manager Appointed 07/01/2021
Fire Inspector Jason Lundstrom Town Manager Annual appointment Appointed 07/01/2021
Alternate Fire Inspector Annual appointment Appointed 07/01/2021
Local Plumbing Inspector Ryan Carey Town Manager Annual appointment Appointed 07/01/2021
Alternate Local Plumbing Inspector Jared LeBarnes Appointed 07/01/2021
Civil Emergency Director Chris Bailey Town Manager Annual appointment Appointed 07/01/2021
Animal Control Officer Trisha Bruen Town Manager Annual appointment Appointed 07/01/2021
E-911 Addressing Officer Matt Thomas Town Manager Annual appointment Appointed 07/01/2021
General Assist. Administrator Amanda Day Town Manager Annual appointment Appointed 07/01/2021

Police Chief Chris Bailey Town Manager
Annual appointment but may be longer as 
a fixed term for all police officers Appointed 4/16/2019, five years

Office Official Appointing   Authority        Term Status



Appointment Roster as of 07/01/2021

Deputy Police Chief Scott Webber Police Chief Five years Appointed 4/16/2019, five years
Police Officers  Daniel Stewart Five years Appointed 07/01/2019

Joel Small Five years Appointed 07/01/2019
Adam Oko Five years Appointed 
Shawn Devine Five years Appointed 07/01/2019
Benson Eyles Five years Appointed 07/01/2019
Marc Egan Five years Appointed 07/01/2019
William Miller Five years Appointed 07/01/2019
Monic Christian Five years Appointed 07/01/2019
David Mushrall Five years Appointed 07/01/2019

Five years

Forest Fire Warden Chris Bailey State Forestry Serves at the pleasure of the State Director

Deputy Town Clerk Jenn Mahon Town Clerk

Annual appointment, serves at the 
pleasure of the clerk, term ends 
immediately when clerk's term ends Appointed 07/01/2021

Deputy Town Clerk Samantha Town Clerk

Annual appointment, serves at the 
pleasure of the clerk, term ends 
immediately when clerk's term ends Appointed 07/01/2021

Deputy Town Clerk Amanda Day Town Clerk

Annual appointment, serves at the 
pleasure of the clerk, term ends 
immediately when clerk's term ends Appointed 07/01/2021

Deputy Tax Collector Tax Collector

Annual appointment, serves at the pleasure 
of the tax  collector, term ends immediately 
when collector's term ends Appointed 07/01/2021

Sub-registrar James Fernald Town Clerk Annual appointment 

Election Clerks
Various-changes each election 
depending on availability Town Clerk Two year appointment Appointed 

Election Warden Gayle Decker Town Clerk Appointed for each election

** Election law allows for the clerk to also be the Warden. When this occurs, the Warden is sworn in 
by the Deputy Clerk

Note: Under Article III, Sec. 301 of the Town Charter (in part), the town manager shall appoint the town clerk, treasurer, tax collector, tax assessor, and 
department heads* subject to Council confirmation. 



Appointment Roster as of 07/01/2021

 (*taken to mean only those department heads who are statutory officials.)

Appointment Roster as of 07/01/2021 
Note: Under Article Ill, Sec. 301 of the Town Charter (in part), the town manager shall appoint the town cierk, treasurer, tax collector, tax assessor, and department heads* subject to Council 
confirmation. 
(*taken to mean only those department heads who are statutory officials.) 



06/16/2021 

TOWN OF HAMPDEN 
IN THE TOWN COUNCIL 

Order 2021-02 
Adoption: June 21, 2021 

ORDER PROHIBITING THE USE OF CERTAIN TRAILERS 
AT THE HAMPDEN TRANSFER STATION 

WHEREAS, it shall be the policy of the Hampden Town Council to protect the life and safety of 
residents using the Transfer Station, to promote a safer environment while residents use the facility, 
and to improve upon the safety concerns of ingress and egress therein.  

IT IS ORDERED, that the Hampden Town Council, by their vote, shall set the policy to allow trailers 
into the Transfer Station but mandate that dump trailers be off loaded by hand. The number of trailers 
of any kind within the Transfer Station shall be at the discretion of the Director of Public Works. 

This order is adopted on July 6, 2021. 

Town Clerk: ORDERED by a majority of the Town Council: 

_____________________________ _____________________________________ 
Gayle Decker 

_____________________________________ 

_____________________________________ 

_____________________________________ 

_____________________________________ 

_____________________________________ 

_____________________________________ 

Shelby Wright, Mayor (A/L)) 
Peter Erickson (1) 
Christine Cubberley (2) 

 Eric Jarvi, Deputy Mayor (A/L) 
Ivan McPike (A/L) 
Mark Cormier (3) 

Allen Esposito (4)) 

G-a



TO: 
FROM: 
DATE: 
RE: 

Memorandum 

Town Council 
Paula Scott, Town Manager 
June 30, 2020 
Council Orders - annual authorizations 

The Council orders that you see following this memo are annual housekeeping 
measures to authorize various aspects of operations which are required by statute. 

Council Order 2021-03- Disbursement of wages and payment of state fees: 

Because all disbursements are only authorized by vote of the municipal officers, and 
because the Council only meets twice a month in order to conduct business, this order, 
which is set out in statute, allows the disbursement of employee wages and state fees 
(motor vehicle funds, retirement contributions, etc ... ) which are paid every week to 
employees and state agencies, to be authorized upon the signature of a single Councilor 
selected by the body. This order also sets out two back up Councilors to be the 
signatories in the absence of the designated member. 

Council Order 2021-04 -Authorizing the application of property tax payment: 

This order sets the policy that any payment on real estate taxes must be applied to the 
oldest outstanding amount due. It also authorizes the municipality to accept 
prepayments on taxes, but to pay no interest on such prepayment. 

Council Order 2021-05 - Establishing procedures for the receipt of gifts, donations and 
funds from outside sources: 

In the same way that disbursements are approved by the municipal officers, gifts, 
donations, grants, or any funds from outside sources may not be receipted by the 
Treasurer without the blanket approval of the Council. By statute, these gifts, donations, 
grants, etc ... are to be unconditional in that we may not receipt a gift of money with a 
condition of a favor for the giver. That does not mean that if an individual or other source 
wishes to donate to a specific facet of government, such as the Rec Department for 
instance, that that gift is considered conditional. This order also authorizes the Treasurer 
to apply those funds to their intended purpose without needing approval. If we receive 
grant funds for tum out gear, the Treasurer is authorized to buy it as was intended by the 
grant. 

Council Order 2021-06- Establishing a tax club for tax year 2022: 

This order authorizes the Tax Collector to establish a tax club agreement which is a 
payment plan for a set amount of months with an established set of rules which are set 
out in statute, and which are delineated within the order. 



Peter Erickson(]) 
Christine Cubberley (2) 
Mark Cormier (3) 

TOWN OF HAMPDEN 

IN THE TOWN COUNCIL 

Allen Esposito (4) 
Ivan McPike {AIL) 

Eric Jarvi (All) 
Shelby Wright, Mayor (AIL) 

Order 2021-03 

Adoption: July 6, 2021 

ORDER PERMITTING DISBURSEMENT OF EMPLOYEE WAGES AND STATE FEES 

ORDERED, that it shall be the policy of the Hampden Town Council to pennit the disbursement of 
employee wages and benefits and money due the Department of Motor Vehicles, on a disbursement 
warrant signed by one Councilor. No disbursement other than wages and benefits, and Motor Vehicle 
fees may be made until a majority of Councilors have signed the disbursement warrant. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, that the Hampden Town Council, by their vote, designate 
Councilor ______ or Councilor ____ or Councilor ______ to sign the payroll 
and benefit/Department of Motor Vehicle warrant. This order shall be filed with the Municipal Clerk 
and Municipal Treasurer and must be renewed annually by vote of the Town Council. 

Authorizing statute: MRSA 30-A Section 5603, 2-A 

This order is adopted on July 6th, for fiscal year 2022. 

Town Clerk: ORDERED by a majority of the Town Council: 

Gayle C. Decker 



Peter Erickson (]) 
Christine Cubberley (2) 

Mark Cormier (3) 

Order 2021-04 

Adoption: July 6, 2021 

TOWN OF HAMPDEN 

IN THE TOWN COUNCIL 

Allen &posito (4) 
Ivan McPike (AIL) 

Eric Jarvi (AIL) 
Shelby Wright, Mayor (AIL) 

ORDER AUTHORIZING THE APPLICATION OF PROPERTY TAX PAYMENTS 

ORDERED, that the Hampden Town Council hereby authorizes and directs the Tax Collector, 
pursuant to Title 36 MRSA, Section 906, to apply any tax payment received from an individual as 
payment for any property tax against outstanding or delinquent taxes due on said property in 
chronological order beginning with the oldest unpaid tax bill, provided, however, that no such payment 
may be applied to any tax for which an abatement application or appeal is pending unless approved in 
writing by the tax payer. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, that the Hampden Town Council hereby authorizes the Tax Collector, 
pursuant to Title 36 MRSA, Section 506, to accept prepayment of taxes not yet committed and to pay 
no interest there on. 

This order is adopted on July 6th, 2021 for fiscal year 2022. 

Town Clerk: ORDERED by a majority of the Town Council: 

Gayle C. Decker 



Peter Erickson (1) 
Christine Cubberley (2) 
Mark Cormier (J) 

Order 2021-05 

· Adoption: July 6, 2021

TOWN OF HAMPDEN 

IN THE TOWN COUNCIL 

Allen Esposito (4) 
Ivan McPike (AIL)) 

Eric Jarvi (AIL) 
Shelby Wright, Mayor {AIL) 

ORDER ESTABLISHING PROCEDURES FOR THE RECEIPT OF GIFTS, DONATIONS 

AND FUNDS FROM OUTSIDE SOURCES 

ORDERED, The Hampden Town Council hereby establishes procedures for the receipt 
and acceptance of monetary gifts, donations and funds to the Town of Hampden from 
outside sources. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, the Town Council directs the Treasurer, pursuant to Title 
30-A MR.SA § 5652-5655, to accept gifts from sources identified as citizens, estates and
trusts, organizations, grantors, the State of Maine, and the United States and that these
gifts shall be unconditional;

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, that the Town Council authorizes the Treasurer to 
appropriate any funds received to specified or appropriate accounts or funds for public 
purposes and to disburse those funds as such. 

This Order to be filed with the Municipal Clerk and the Municipal Treasurer and 
renewed annually by vote of the Town Council. 

This order is adopted on July 6, 2021 for fiscal year 2022. 

Town Clerk: ORDERED by a majority of the Town Council: 

Gayle C. Decker 



Men,o 
To: 

From: 

cc: 

Date: 

Re: 

Town of Hampden Town Council 

Wanda Libbey, Tax Collector 

Paula Scott, Town Manager 

July 6, 2021 

2022 Tax Club 

I am requesting the authorization of a tax club for tax year 2022. Authorization is needed 
annually. 

During the 2020/2021 Tax Year, there were approximately 21 citizens enrolled in the program. 

Thank you for your consideration. 



Ivan P. McPike (AIL) 
Peter Erickson (1) 
Christine Cubberley (2) 

Order: 2022-6 

Adoption: July 6, 2021 

TOWN OF HAMPDEN 

IN THE TOWN COUNCIL 

Mark Cormier (3) 
Allen Esposito (4) 

Eric Jarvi (AIL) 
Shelby Wright (Mayor AIL) 

ORDER AUTHORIZING THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A TAX CLUB FOR 2022 TAXES 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Town Council of Hampden, Maine, that: 

The Tax Collector of the Town of Hampden may enter into a standard agreement with taxpayers establishing a tax 

club payment plan pursuant to Title 36 §505-506 for commercial and/or residential real estate property taxes, 

whereby: 

1.) The taxpayer agrees to pay specified monthly payments to the town based on his/her estimated and actual 

tax obligation for current year real estate property taxes. 

2.) The town agrees not to charge interest on timely payments made pursuant to the tax club agreement. 

3.) The town authorizes the collector to accept tax club payments for current year taxes which may be due prior 

to the commitment of those taxes. 

4.) The agreement is automatically terminated if a scheduled payment is late, and the taxpayer then becomes 

subject to the same due date{s) and interest date(s) and rate as other taxpayers who are not participating in 

a tax club. 

5.) Only taxpayers who do not have outstanding tax obligations for prior tax years are eligible to participate in 

the tax club program; and 

6.) Taxpayers wishing to participate in a tax club for a particular property tax year shall enter an agreement with 

the town by a publidy advertised deadline determined by the tax collector. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY VOTED AND ORDERED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF HAMPDEN, 

MAINE: 

Dated this 6th day of July 2021, in Hampden, Maine 

Town Clerk: 

Gayle Decker 

ORDERED by a majority of the Town Council: 



TO: 
FROM: 
DATE: 
RE: 

H- e,f, 1
----�-

Memorandum 

Town Council 
Paula Scott, Town Manager 
June 30, 2020 
Interest charged on delinquent 

taxes, interest paid on tax over 
payments, and tax due dates 

When taxes are paid and then abated, a municipality must pay interest on the 
over payment at the same rate it established for delinquent taxes, unless is has 
established a different rate by vote of the Municipal officers. This rate cannot 
exceed the rate established for delinquent taxes, nor can it be less than that rate 
reduced by 4%. The State sets the interest rate for delinquent taxes which, for 
this next tax year, can be between 4% and 6%. I would recommend setting the 
interest rate for delinquent taxes at 6%. If the Council wishes to choose the 4% 
reduction to be paid on overpayments, that rate would be 2% which would be my 
recommendation. 

The Municipal officers must also, by vote, establish the date when taxes are due 
and payable. Tradition in Hampden is to always set the due dates as the first 
Wednesday in October and April. Those dates for the FY22 taxes would be 
October 6th

, 2021, and April 6th
, 2022. 



Maine Office of the Treasurer 

Home - Revenue Sharing ----. Delinquent Tax Rates 

Delinquent Tax Rates 

Municipalities may, by vote, determine the rate of interest that shall apply to taxes that become 

delinquent during a particular taxable year until those taxes are paid in full. The maximum rate of 

interest that can be charged per Title 36, M.R.S.A. Section 505-4 is as follows: 

Taxable YearMaximum Rate 

2021 4.00% up to 6.00% 
2020 8.00% 
2019 9.00% 
2018 8.00% 
2017 7.00% 
2016 7.00% 
2015 7.00% 
2014 7.00% 

2013 7.00% 
2012 7.00% 
2011 7.00% 
2010 7.00% 
2009 7.00% up to 9.00% 
2008 11.00% 
2007 12.00% 
2006 11.00% 
2005 7.75% 

2004 6.50% 
2003 7.00% 
2002 6.75% up to 8.75% 
2001 11.50% 
2000 10.75% 
1999 10.00% 
1998 10.75% 
1997 10.50% 
1996 10.75% 
1995 10.75% 
1994 10.00% 

1993 10.00% 
1992 10.00% 
1991 12.00% 

If you have any questions about this information, please feel free to contact my Office. 

Credits 

Copyright © 2010 
All rights reserved. 



TEL 862-3337 

June 30, 2021 

To: Paula Scott 

TOWN OF HAMPDEN 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

106 WESTERN AVE. 

HAMPDEN, ME 04444 

From: Victor J. Smith, P.E. 

FAX 862-5067 

Subject: Proposals for Bridge Design Engineering Services for the Manning Mill Bridge 
and Sawyer Road Bridge 

On June 30th, the Town of Hampden received and reviewed six proposals from engineering 
firms for engineering design services for the Manning Mill Bridge and the Sawyer Road 
Bridge. Bid proposals were reviewed based on bridge design experience and qualifications, 
knowledge of the proposed structures, and lastly price. 

After careful review of the six proposals, I have decided that we should award the contract to 
TYLin based upon their extensive bridge design experience and local knowledge of the two 
bridges in question. Not only were they one of the most qualified engineering firms to put in 
proposals, but they also had the lowest price. 



TOWN OF HAMPDEN 

BID SHEET 

BIDDER QUUALIFICATIONS FOR THIS BID BID AMOUNT 

Calderwood Enaineerina Extensive $123,910 

TY Lin Extensive $68,400 

Wriqht-Pierce Extensive $171,440 

CMA Enqineers Extensive $167,000 

Haley-Ward Verv Good $100,250 

Plymouth Enaineerinq Verv Good $68,800 


	Appointment roster 2021 - Need to update for new hires.pdf
	Sheet1




